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                             CIN : L65993WB1970PLC027781 
REGISTERED OFFICE   27B, Camac Street (8th Floor), Kolkata -  700016  
                   Phone : (033) 2287-9359/9360, Fax : (033) 2287-2047 
E-mail : unitedcreditltd@gmail.com Website : www.unitedcreditltd.com 
 
 

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Fifty - first Annual General Meeting of the members of 
UNITED CREDIT LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, the 27th September, 2022 at 
11.00 A.M. through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). 
The Company will conduct the meeting from 7C, Middleton Street, Kolkata – 700071, 
which shall be deemed to be venue of the meeting to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal (DIN: 000393162), who 

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 
3. To consider re-appointment of M/s. L. B. Jha & Co., Chartered  Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 301088E), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
and to fix their remuneration and in his connection to consider and, if thought fit, 
to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 139, 142 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,                        
M/s L. B.Jha & Co., Chartered Accountants of B-2/1, Gillander House, 8, Netaji 
Subhas Road, Kolkata – 700 001 having Firm’s Registration No. 301088E, be 
and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
from the conclusion of the fifty-first Annual General Meeting till the conclusion  of 
the fifty-six Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 on such 
remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company from 
time to time.”   

 
  

 
 
 

                                                                                By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
                                                                                         Sd/- 

        Deepali Gupta 
                                                                 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
                                                                                        Membership No. A65652 

 
May 27, 2022 
Kolkata - 700016 
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             UNITED CREDIT LIMITED 



NOTES 
 

I) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide its circular dated May 5,2022 read together 
with circulars dated April 8,2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 
8,2021 and December 14,2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”),permitted 
convening the Annual General Meetings (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other 
Audio Visual Means (OAVM) without physical presence of the members in the venue, In 
accordance with the MCA Circulars and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act read with Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) the 51st AGM of the Company will 
be conducted through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the 51st AGM shall be 7C, Middleton 
Street, Kolkata – 700071. 

  
II) Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal is retiring by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). Her 

profile is given in Annexure I  to the Notice as per requirement of Regulation 36(3) of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and SS-2. 

 
III) Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address to the Company and/or 

to the Depository Participants, wherever applicable. 
 

IV) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding 
shares in physical form may file nomination in the prescribed form SH-13 with the Registrars & 
Share Transfer Agent of the Company, C B Management Services (P)  Limited,  P-22,  Bondel 
Road, Kolkata – 700 019 (CBM). In respect of shares held in electronic / demat form, the 
nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant.  
 
Members may note that as per SEBI Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 27th March, 2019, except 
in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities 
shall not be processed unless the securities are held in dematerialised form with a depository. 
This measure has come into effect from 1st April, 2019. Accordingly, members are requested to 
dematerialise their shares as early as possible, if not already done. 

 
V) The Company has complied with the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund 

Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 by furnishing and uploading 
information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amount of dividends lying with the Company in 
Form No.IEPF-2 on the website of the Authority, www.iepf.gov.in and website of the Company, 
www.unitedcreditltd.com. 

 
VI) Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act read 

with Rule 6 of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended vide Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017 (‘IEPF Rules’) all such shares 
in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more 
are also required to be transferred to IEPF Authority. The Company has transferred the shares 
in respect of unclaimed dividend up to the financial year 2009-2010 in favour of the IEPF 
Authority, on 30th November, 2017. As per record maintained by CBM, after this transfer, 
presently there are no shares of the Company which are required to be transferred to IEPF. 

The voting rights on shares transferred to the Fund shall remain frozen until the rightful owner 
claims the shares. 

 
VII) Members are informed that once the unpaid / unclaimed dividend or the shares are transferred to 

IEPF, the same may be claimed by the Members from the IEPF Authority by making an 
application in prescribed Form IEPF-5 online and sending the physical copy of the same duly 
signed (as per the specimen signature recorded with the Company) along with requisite documents 
to the Registered Office of the Company for verification of the claim. The Form IEPF-5 is available 
on the website of IEPF at www.iepf.gov.in. 

VIII) Members are informed that the scrips of the Company have been activated both in Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited and National Securities Depository Limited and may be 
dematerialised under the ISIN INE858C01027. 
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IX) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or 
bank mandates immediately to the Company or CBM.  Members  holding  shares  in  electronic 
form are  requested  to  intimate  immediately  any  change  in  their  address  or  bank mandate 
to their depository participant with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

X) The members are also informed that the Company has to maintain the Register of Members in the 
prescribed Form MGT-1, which requires detail information of the members. The shareholders 
are requested to furnish the required information in the enclosed form marked Annexure ‘A’ and 
send back the same duly signed to C B M soonest possible. 

 
XI) The shareholders who have not yet surrendered their share certificates of erstwhile United Credit 

Financial Services Limited are requested to contact CBM for necessary action immediately. 
 

XII) Members who hold shares in physical form under multiple folios in identical names or joint holding 
in the same order of names, are requested to send the share certificates to the Company / 
Registrars & Share Transfer Agent for consolidation into a single folio. 

 
XIII) The shareholders are requested to register their e-mail address with the Company /CBM and / or with 

the concerned Depository Participant where applicable and changes therein from time to time, to 
enable the Company to serve documents and notice of meeting through e-mail. 

 
The persons, who have not registered their email addresses with the Company, can get the 
same registered with the Company by filing the attached e-communication form Marked 
Annexure ‘B’. 

 
XIV) In compliance with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 13, 2022, Notice of the AGM 

along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent/ 
Depository Participants / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website www.unitedcreditltd.com, websites of 
the Stock Exchanges, that is, BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.cse-india.com respectively, and on the website of Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited at www.evotingindia.com. 

 
XV) Members may note that the Notice of the 51st  AGM, along with its enclosures, will also be available 

on the Company’s website www.unitedcreditltd.com and the website of CDSL 
www.evotingindia.com for their download. Register of Directors and  Key  Managerial  
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”), Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested under 
Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection during the AGM in electronic mode. 

 
XVI) Since the AGM will be held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual means, the route 

map of the venue of the meeting, proxy form and attendance slip are not annexed to this notice 
 

XVII) Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) will provide service for e-voting and 
participating in the Fifty – first Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing / other 
Audio Visual means.  
 

XVIII) Instructions for Members for e-voting and participating in the 51st AGM through Video 
Conference (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) are as under: 

 
1. The general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and SEBI Circular dated May 5, 2022 and May 13, 
2022 respectively, the forthcoming AGM will thus be held through Video Conferencing (VC) 
or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the 
ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM 
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2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 
(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM 
will be provided by CDSL. 

 
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account 
of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 

the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020,  the facility to appoint proxy to 

attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance 
of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the 
members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.unitedcreditltd.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.cse-india.com respectively.  The AGM Notice is also 
disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility 
and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com. 

. 
 
 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

 
(i) The voting period begins at 9.00 a.m. on Friday, the 23rd September, 2022 and ends at 

5.00 p.m. on Monday, the 26th September, 2022. During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date i.e. 20th September, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 

vote at the meeting venue. 
 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 
2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
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and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide 
remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. 
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
   Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 

listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a 
single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ 
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without 
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting 
process. 

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 

on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is 
given below: 
 
Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers i.e.  

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 
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 4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLoginThe system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-Voting optionwhere the evoting is in progress 
and alsoable to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Participants (DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free no. 1800 
22 55 33 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders 

other than individual holding in Demat form. 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
 

6) If you are a first-timeuser follow the steps given below: 
 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in 
Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
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(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is 
to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible 
to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN 220801006 of  UNITED CREDIT LIMITED. 
 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” 
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

 
(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to 
scrutinizer for verification. 

 
(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 

 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 
 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 
mapping. 

 
 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same 
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 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; unitedcreditltd@gmail.com, if 
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 

    
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 
 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at company email id – 
unitedcreditltd@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may 
send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company 
suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 
 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 
  2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP) 
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3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 
 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact attoll free no. 1800 22 55 33 
 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, MarathonFuturex, Mafatlal 
Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

 
 

XIX) General : 
 

(i) Mrs. Indrani Chaudhuri, Practising Company Secretary, Kolkata, (Membership No. ACS 
8739), failing her, Mr. Rajarshi Ghosh, Practising Company Secretary, Kolkata 
(Membership No. ACS 17717), has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
remote e-voting process and voting at the meeting in a fair and transparent manner 

 
(ii) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, 

first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through 
remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the 
company and make, not later than forty-eight hours of conclusion of the meeting, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, and 
submit the same to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing who shall 
countersign the same. 

 
Provided that the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing shall declare the result of the 
voting forthwith. 

 
XX) The results of the e-voting along with the Scrutinizer’s report  shall  be  placed  in  the  

Company’s website www.unitedcreditltd.com and on the website of  CDSL  
www.evotingindia.com  immediately  after  the  result  is  declared  by  the  Chairman.  The 
results will also be simultaneously communicated to the BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock 
Exchange Ltd. where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 

XXI) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on 
the date of the meeting, i.e. 27th September, 2022. 

 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                       Sd/- 

    Deepali Gupta 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Membership No. A 65652 
 

May 27, 2022 
Kolkata - 700016 
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ANNEXURE - I 

 
 
 

PROFILE OF MRS. RASHMI DABRIWAL, DIRECTOR RETIRING  BY 
ROTATION AND SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE AGM 

 

a) Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal (DIN: 00393162) aged about 45 years is a Chartered Accountant and 
LLB. She is a Gold Medalist in Indirect Taxation. Mrs. Dabriwal was first appointed as Director of 
the Company on 7th February, 2014. She is liable to retire by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
b) Mrs. Dabriwal has vast experience in corporate banking, portfolio management, wealth 

management and real estate for a decade. She has also experience in running a hotel for more 
than decade. Mrs. Dabriwal has given his consent to be re-appointed as Director of the 
Company liable to retire by rotation and she has also given a declaration confirming that she is 
not disqualified to act as Director under the Act.  

 
c) Mrs. Dabriwal is related to Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala, Chairman & Managing Director and             

Mr. Devashish Dabriwal, Director of the  Company. 
 

d) She is not on the Board of any other listed Company. Details of her Directorship, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of the Board of Directors of other unlisted companies are given 
hereunder: 

 
Name of the Company Director/Chairman Chairman of 

the Board 
Committees 

Member of the 
Board Committees 

Instinct 13 Financial 
Solutions Private Limited 

 Director                              —              --- 

Jaybhikshu Cotspin Private 
Limited 

 Director                               —                          -— 

 
e) Mrs. Dabriwal is not holding any shares in the Company. 

 

f) She is not entitled to any remuneration other than sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board 
and its Committees. 

 
g) During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, there were Six meetings of the Board of 

Directors and Mrs. Dabriwal was present in all the meetings. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS 

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fifty-First Annual Report and the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31

st 
March, 2022. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Financial Highlights of the Company for the financial year under review as compared to the previous 
financial year are given hereunder: 

 
 

Particulars 
( Rs. in Lacs ) 

2021-2022 2020-2021 
Revenue from operations 269.57 271.24 
Other Income         16.99 6.74 

Total  286.56 277.98 

Profit / (Loss) before Taxation  127.90 119.74 

Provision for Taxation 52.49 32.36 

Net Profit 75.41 87.38 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (net of tax) 1.07 0.87 

Total comprehensive Income 76.48 88.25 

 
STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
During the year under review the Company has been able to achieve profit before tax of Rs.127.90 
lakhs as against Rs. 119.74 lakhs in the previous year. 

There is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company. The Company is principally 
engaged in Non-Banking Financial activities. The Company earns its revenue from interest on loan and 
rent. 

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 have been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of Sections 129, 133 and Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and Ind 
AS as applicable for Non-Banking Financial Companies. 

During the year under review the Company has achieved a total revenue of Rs. 269.57 lakhs as 
compared to Rs.271.24 lakhs in the previous year. 

 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
The contribution of Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) is key to India’s economic growth. The 
Sector has played a crucial role in the development of infrastructure, transport and support system for 
economically weaker sections. Operating simultaneously on a parallel platform with Banks and 
Financial Institutions, it has established its worth as an alternative source of finance. NBFCs are 
regulated by Reserve Bank of India and accordingly are subject to stringent norms. The Company is 
traditionally engaged in the business of Non-Banking financial company and had succeeded in pockets, 
where banks have not been able to reach. The Company has started facing difficulty in carrying on its 
traditional business; difficulty faced mainly in recovering the fund disbursed, in addition to combating 
competition from other big players in the market. To obviate this, the Company has started exploring 
opportunities in segments like real estates, loan syndication and entertainment in a limited manner. The 
management expects that expansion of range of activities will help the Company in increasing its profits 
in the future years. 

 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

During the year under review, your Company has transferred a sum of Rs. 15,08,225/- to Reserve Fund 
as per norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.  
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DIVIDEND 

Considering the requirement of fund for day to day business operation and proposed diversification, the 
Directors did not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

Particulars of loan given and investments made are furnished in Note Nos. 6 and 7 of the notes to the 
financial statements. The Company did not give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with 
a loan to any other body corporate or person during the financial year under review. The Company being 
an NBFC nothing contained in Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 except Sub-section (1) shall apply. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year under review. There is also no 
unclaimed or unpaid deposit as on 31st March, 2022. 

 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into 
by your Company with Related Parties were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business. There are no material transactions with any Related Party as defined under Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. All 
Related Party transactions have been approved by the Audit Committee of your Company and are 
reviewed by it on a quarterly basis. 

 
The Company has voluntarily formulated the policy in dealing with related party transactions although 
compliance with the provisions of corporate governance is not applicable to the Company at present. The 
policy can be accessed in the web link 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1322_data.pdf. 

 
The details of contracts and arrangements with Related Parties as per Companies Act, 2013, SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable statutory 
provisions are given in Note No. 27 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, forming part of this Annual 
Report. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
between the end of the financial year under review and the date of the report. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

During the financial year under review NBFCs have faced liquidity challenges and asset liability 
mismatches.  

External business environment as a whole is not encouraging and the business houses are striving for 
survival. 

No strategic and financial partner was inducted in the Company during the period under review.                                                                                                     
 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

The Board of Directors comprises of six Directors out of which Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala (DIN: 
00024498) is functioning in executive capacity. 

 
Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nandanandan Mishra (DIN: 00031342), Mr. Raj 
Mohan Choubey (DIN: 00031305) and Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha (DIN: 00484308) are acting as 
Independent Directors. One meeting of the Independent Directors was held during the year as per 
statutory requirement. 
 
During the financial year under review Mr. Arunabha Biswas, Vice President and Company Secretary 
passed away on 20th September, 2021. 
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Ms. Deepali Gupta, an Associate Member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, has been 
appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from                        
15th December, 2021. 

 
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal (DIN: 00393162) retires by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
 
Independent Directors had given declaration in accordance with the provisions of Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as per Section 149(6) of the said 
Act. 
 
The Board of Directors confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of expertise, 
experience and integrity as per statutory requirements. 

 
Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala, Chairman & Managing Director, Ms. Deepali Gupta, Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer and Mr. Samarjit Jain, Chief Financial Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
statutory provisions, Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors was held on                        
11th February, 2022. The details of familiarisation programme could be accessed in the web link 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1317_data.pdf .  

 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES 

 
Details of meetings of the Board and its Committees held during the financial year ended                    
31st March, 2022 are given in the enclosed statement marked Annexure ‘I’. 

 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 134(3)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Directors confirm that : 

 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed and there is no material departure therefrom; 

ii) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent  so  as  to  give  a  true  and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and of the profit of the 
Company for that period; 

iii) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance  of  adequate  accounting  
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

vi) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Company has in place a comprehensive risk management policy, which is reviewed periodically by the 
Board of Directors. As of now the Directors do not envisage any element of risk which may threaten the 
existence of the Company. The Policy can be accessed on the Company’s website at 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1323_data.pdf. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In terms of Regulation 15(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, compliance with corporate governance provisions is not 
mandatory for the time being in respect of the Company as its paid-up equity share capital and net worth do  
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not exceed Rs.10.00 Crores and Rs. 25.00 Crores respectively as on the last day of the previous financial 
year. 

 
COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee consists of three Non-Executive Independent Directors, namely Mr. Suresh Chandra 
Saha, Mr. Nandanandan  Mishra and Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey. Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha is acting as the 
Chairman of the Committee. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the 
Board. 

 
COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Non-Executive Independent Directors, 
namely Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey, Mr. Nandanandan Mishra and Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha. Mr. Raj 
Mohan Choubey is acting as the Chairman of the Committee. 

 
COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey, 
Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala and Mr. Devashish Dabriwal. Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey is acting as the 
Chairman of the Committee. 

 
PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 
The Company has formulated and published on its official website, Codes of Fair Disclosure and Conduct 
for prohibition of insider trading pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended. 

The Company has formulated various Policies and Procedures as per requirement of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 which, amongst 
others, include 

(i) Policies and Procedures for enquiry in case of leak of unpublished price sensitive information. 

(ii) Process for how and when people are brought inside on sensitive transactions. 

(iii) Internal Controls Systems 
 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established for directors and employees of the Company, a vigil mechanism as per 
requirement of Companies  Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended, to enable them to report 
genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct or ethics policy. The policy of vigil mechanism / whistle blower may be accessed on the 
Company’s website at the link 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1324_data.pdf.  

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility 
are not applicable to the Company as the net worth, turnover and net profit during the financial year 
under review are less than the stipulated amount. Accordingly, no policy has been framed by the 
Company on Corporate Social Responsibility. 

 
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 
As stipulated in Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, business responsibility report is not applicable in case of 
the Company. 
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TRANSFER OF EQUITY SHARES AND UNPAID DIVIDEND 
TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATIONAND PROTECTION FUND 

As per statutory requirement, dividends declared up to the financial year  2012-2013 which remained unpaid 
or unclaimed for a period of seven years have been duly transferred by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government under Section 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 within the stipulated time. 

 
In terms of Section 124(6) of the Act read with Rule 6 of Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended vide Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017 (‘IEPF 
Rules’) all such shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive 
years or more are also required to be transferred to IEPF Authority. The Company has transferred the 
shares in respect of unclaimed dividend up to the financial year 2010-2011 in favour of the IEPF 
Authority, on 30th November, 2017. As per record maintained by CBM, after this transfer, presently there 
are no shares of the Company which are required to be transferred to IEPF. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

M/s. L B Jha & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 301088E) were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 22nd September, 2017 of 
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 
2022.  
 
The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee suggests that M/s. L B Jha & 
Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 301088E) be re-appointed as Statutory Auditors for 
a further term of 5 years, till conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2027.  
 
The Statutory Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND AUDIT REPORT 

In accordance with the requirement of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sumantra Sinha, 
Practising Company Secretary has been appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022. 

A report made by him, pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached marked 
Annexure ‘II’.  

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
In terms of Para 9 of Secretarial Standard on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1), it is confirmed 
that all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
have been duly complied with. 

 
NON-APPLICABILITY OF MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder with respect to the Company’s nature of business 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

The Company being engaged in non-banking financial activities, the question of conservation of energy 
and technology absorption does not arise. 

 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

There has been no foreign exchange earnings in any manner. However during the year an expenditure 
of Rs. 2,00,540/-  was made in  foreign currency. 
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED 
BYREGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNALS 

There is no significant and material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal impacting the going 
concern status of the Company and Company’s operations in future. 

 

LISTING WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGES 

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited. 
 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
The Company has taken appropriate measures to ensure adequate internal financial control 
commensurate with the activities of the Company. Internal financial control is the responsibility of the 
Board of Directors. In line with the requirement of the relative provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has taken necessary steps for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. 

 
In compliance with the requirement of Rule 8(5)(viii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 
management has taken necessary steps for design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended the Annual Return of the Company 
as on 31st March, 2022 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at the link 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1327_data.pdf.  
 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION ETC. 

In compliance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommended to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

 
The details of the above policy has been placed on the website of the Company and may be accessed 
at the link https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1325_data.pdf. 

 
The salient features of the policy are given hereunder: 

 
As a matter of policy, the Company appoints directors from various fields. The present composition of the 
Board comprises of personnel with experience in finance, statutory matters and various economic 
activities. 

 
The Policy stipulates the criteria 

 
(i) to determine qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors as well as to 

ensure a fair and reasonable remuneration on the basis of appropriate appraisal by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the requirement of Companies  Act,  
2013; 

(ii) to tap out untapped creativity of the employees and to motivate the employees to give their best for 
the growth and prosperity of the Company; 

(iii) to      ensure      consistency      in       compensation       on       the       basis       of  
qualification, experience and ability to perform. 

 
It also prescribes composition of remuneration payable to non-executive directors, managing directors, 
whole-time directors, managers and key managerial personnel. 
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

The annual evaluation process of the Board of Directors as a whole, individual Directors and 
Committees of the Board was conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
Competency, experience and qualification are the principal criteria of evaluation and accordingly the 
performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual directors has been made on the basis 
of knowledge, expertise and experience in their respective fields and attendance of the directors in the 
meetings. The independent directors also reviewed the performance of the entire Board including the 
Chairman in their meeting held on 12th August, 2021. 

 
The Board conducted the annual evaluation of the performance of the directors and the Chairman obtained 
the views of the members of the Board and its committees and feedback was provided to the members. 

 
DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY 

Disclosure pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
provided in Annexure ‘III’. 

 
The Company has got no employee who is in receipt of remuneration mentioned in Rule 5(2) (i), (ii) and (iii) 
of the said Rules. However, a statement showing the names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration 
drawn and other details in accordance with the requirement of Rule 5(2) of the said Rules is annexed 
marked Annexure ‘IV’. 

 
COMPLIANCE OF PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy as per requirement of the said Act. During 
the year under review, no complaint has been received. 

During the calendar year ended 31st December, 2021, the Company held workshops and awareness 
programmes for sensitising the employees with the provisions of the Act. There was also an orientation 
programme for the Members of the Internal Complaints Committee 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in compliance with Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
as stipulated in Item No. B of Schedule V of the above Regulations, is appended to this report. 

 
SUBSIDIARIES 
The Company has no subsidiary as on 31st March, 2022. 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiaries. The policy has been 
disclosed on the website of the Company and may be accessed at the link 
https://www.unitedcreditltd.com/unitedadmin/upload/cmspage_1326_data.pdf. 

 
FRAUDS 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud to the Audit Committee or to the Board as 
specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
During the year under review the Company has not issued any shares including sweat equity shares to 
the employees of the Company under any scheme and shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting 
or otherwise. 

There has been no change in the capital structure of your Company during the year under review. 
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INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 
 
No application was made and no proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 during the year. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their deep appreciation for the whole-hearted 
and sincere co-operation the Company has received from the statutory authorities, stakeholders, 
customers and bankers. 

Your Directors also wish to thank all the employees for their dedicated and committed service to the 
Company. 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
                                                                                                                                                 Sd/- 

Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Kolkata – 700 016 Chairman & Managing Director 
May 27, 2022.      DIN : 00024498 
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ANNEXURE I 
 

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES HELD  DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

 

Sl. 
No. 

No. and Date of the 
meeting 

Type of meeting Name of the Directors who 
attended the meeting 

1 No. 1/2021-22 
dated 23.04.2021 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  

2 No. 2/2021-22 
dated 29.06.2021 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 

3 No. 3/2021-22 
dated 12.08.2021 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 

4 No. 4/2021-22 
dated 13.11.2021 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 

5 No. 5/2021-22 
dated 8.12.2021 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra                 
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha 
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 

6 No. 6/2021-22 
dated 11.02.2022 

Board Meeting Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra                 
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha 
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal 
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Sl.No. No. and Date of the 

meeting 
Type of meeting Name of the Directors who 

attended the meeting 
7 No. 1/2021-22 

dated 29.06.2021 
Audit Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 

8 No. 2/2021-22 
dated 12.08.2021 

Audit Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 

9 No. 3/2021-22 
dated 13.11.2021 

Audit Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 

10 No. 4/2021-22 
dated 11.02.2022 

Audit Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha 
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 

11 No. 1/2021-22 
dated 29.06.2021 

Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra 
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha 

12 No. 2/2021-22 
dated 08.12.2021 

Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee 
Meeting 

Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra  
Mr. Suresh Chandra Saha 

13 No. 1/2021-22 
dated 11.02.2022 

Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee Meeting 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala  
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal 
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey 

 
 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
                                                                                                                                              Sd/- 

Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Kolkata – 700 016 Chairman & Managing Director 
May 27, 2022. DIN : 00024498 
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                            ANNEXURE - II 
                    SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9  

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To 
The Members, 
United Credit Limited 
27B, Camac Street (8th Floor) 
Kolkata-700016 
 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to 
good corporate practices by United Credit Limited (CIN: L65993WB1970PLC027781) having its 
Registered Office at 27B, Camac Street (8th Floor) Kolkata-700016 (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31.03.2022, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on existence of adequate Board process and compliance management 
system, commensurate with the size of the Company, based on these secretarial records as shown to me 
during the said audit and also based on the information furnished to me by the officers and the agents of the 
Company during the said audit.  
 
I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of my understanding to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 
processes and practices followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 
I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial records, books of accounts and 
decisions taken by the Board and by various committees of the Company during the period under scrutiny.  
I have checked the Board process and compliance management system to understand and to form an 
opinion as to whether there is an adequate system of seeking approval of respective committees of the 
Board, of the Board, of the members of the Company and of other authorities as per the provisions of 
various statues as mentioned hereinafter.  
 
Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events, etc. 
The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards 
is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of compliance 
procedures on test basis. 
 

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness or accuracy with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
I report that, I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31.03.2022 according to the provisions of: 
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;  
(iii)  Listing Agreement(s) with the Stock Exchange(s).  
(iv) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956  and the rules made there under; 
(v) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(vi)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

(vii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 : 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulation, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

            During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations/guidelines/standards were 
not applicable to the Company: 

 
(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme ) Guidelines, 1999; 
(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 
(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. 

 
The compliance(s) specified under Section 45 1(a) and other applicable provisions under the RBI Act, 1934, 
relate to the Company, which is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC). Other laws specifically 
applicable to the Company inter-alia mainly relate to the relevant statutes prevalent in the State of West 
Bengal where the registered office of the Company is situated. 
 
During the period under review, based on my examination and verification of the books, papers, minutes, 
certificates, forms and returns which were required to be examined by me for this report and according to 
the information and explanations provided to me in the course of my audit by the Company, I report that 
the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. 
mentioned above.  

 
I further report that: 
 

(a) The status of the Company during the financial year has been that of a Listed Public Company.  
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(b) During the period under review, the Company has effected activities/events that have been duly 

recorded as per the minutes which in my opinion are generally routine in nature and do not require 
special mention in the light of having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs with relation to the 
above referred laws, except: 
 
- Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala as the Managing Director of the Company for 

a period of 3 years with effect from 1st November, 2021; 
- Demise of Mr. Arunabha Biswas, Vice President & Company Secretary on 20th September, 2021; 
- Appointment of Ms. Deepali Gupta as Company Secretary and Compliance officer with effect 

from 15th December, 2021.  
(c) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors/CEO, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors during the year under review.  

 
(d) As informed to me, adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

(e) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. There were no such views recorded during the period under review. 

 
(f) There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

 
(g) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of 

appointment, their being independent and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics 
for Directors and Management Personnel. 

 
(h) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in 

contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorship in other companies and interests in 
other entities. 
 

 
 
 
Place: Kolkata                                                                              Sd/- 
Date:  27TH  May, 2022                                                  (CS Sumantra Sinha) 

                                                        Practising Company Secretary 
     Membership No.: ACS 11247/CP No.:15245                                                

PR: 1421/2021                                                                                                                                                           
UDIN: A011247D000393851 
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ANNEXURE – III 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 Requirement of Rule 5(1) Details 
 
i) 

 
The ratio of the remuneration of each 
Director to the median remuneration of 
the employees of the Company for the 
financial year 

Ratio 
Mr. Ashok Kumar Dabriwala                      11.57 
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra                            0.41 
Mr. Raj Mohan.Choubey                             0.45 
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal                              0.24  
Mr. Suresh Chandra. Saha                         0.41  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal                                 0.85  

ii) The percentage increase in 
remuneration of each Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer and Company Secretary in the 
financial year 

Director                                                  Percent 

Mr. Ashok Kumar. Dabriwala                   19.59  
Mr. Nandanandan Mishra                         (9.09)  
Mr. Raj Mohan Choubey                        (15.38)              
Mr. Devashish Dabriwal                         (14.29)  
Mr. Suresh Chandra. Saha                          -  
Mrs. Rashmi Dabriwal                            (25.00)   
 
K.M.P. other than MD 
Mr. Arunabha Biswas 
(Deceased - 20.09.2021)                          0.58 

  Mr. Samarjit Jain                                       0.64 
 
 * Since  Ms. Deepali Gupta Joined Office w.e.f from  

15.12.2021,this requirement is not applicable  
iii) The percentage increase in the 

median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 

 
3.65% 

iv) The number of permanent 
employees on the rolls of the 
Company 

                                          
                                          11 

 
v) Average percentile increase already 

made in the last financial year 
 

(a) in the salaries of employees other 
than the managerial personnel 

                                 (2.24%) 

(b) in the managerial remuneration                                 13.27% 
(c) justification for such increase in 

remuneration 
Annual increase in remuneration is as per the pay 
scale of the concerned employee  excepting very 
few cases where increase is made depending on 
the performance of the 
respective employees. 

(d) exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial 
remuneration 

N.A. 

vi) Affirmation It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to 
the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board 
                                                                                                                                                                            Sd/- 

Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Kolkata – 700 016 Chairman & Managing Director 
May 27, 2022. DIN : 00024498 
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ANNEXURE - IV 
 

DETAILS OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
employee 

Designation 
of the 
employee 

Remune- 
ration 
received 
(Gross) 

Qualifica- 
tion 

Experience 
– 
No. of years 
including 
previous 
employment 

Date of 
commence- 
ment of 
employment 

Age of such 
employee 
(in years) 

Last 
employment 
held by such 
employee before 
joining the 
company 

Percentage 
of equity 
shares held 
by the 
employee in 
the company 
within the 
meaning of 
clause (iii) of 
sub-rule (2) 
of Rule 5 of 
the 
Companies 
(Appointment 
and 
Remuneratio 
n of 
Managerial 
Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 

Whether 
any such 
employee is a 
relative of any 
director or 
manager of the 
company and if 
so, name of 
such director or 
manager 

   ( Rs.)        

1 Mr. A. K. 
Dabriwala 

Chairman & 
Managing 
Director 

28,83,115 B.Com 
(Hons.) 

43 27.07.1989 67 Director-in- 
charge of 
Dabriwala 
Properties Pvt. 
Ltd. 

13.86% Relative of 
Mr. 
Devashish 
Dabriwal and 
Mrs. Rashmi 
Dabriwal 

*2 Mr. 
Arunabha 
Biswas 

Vice 
President & 
Company 
Secretary 

8,30,788 LL.B, 
FCS 

46 01.03.2009 68 DGM (Legal) & 
Company 
Secretary of 
Mangalam 
Timber Products 
Ltd. 

N.A. NO 

3 Mr. Samarjit 
Jain 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

7,67,244 M.Com 38 01.10.1996 60 Sreeleathers as 
Accountant 

N.A. NO 

4 Mr. Padam 
Kishore 
Harlalka 

Manager – 
Adminis- 
tration 

3,88,889 B.Com 43 01.01.2007 64 Director-in- 
charge of 
Anurag 
Properties 
Private Ltd. 

N.A. NO 

5 Ms. R. 
Mallika 

Senior 
Secretarial 
Executive 

3,33,582 B.Com 47 15.06.2010 67 Balmer Lawrie & 
Co. Ltd. as 
Manager 
(Secretarial) 

N.A. NO 

6 Mr. 
Animesh 
Mana 

Senior 
Supervisor 

2,81,842 B.Com 
(Hons) 

27 08.06.2020 48 Dabriwala 
Banijya Udyog 
Limited as 
Senior Site  

  

7 Mr. Avijit 
Roy 
Chowdhury 

Officer 2,47,811 B.Sc. 30 01.09.1992 55 Lakhotia 
Computer 
Centre as a 
Faculty 

N.A. NO 

8 Mr. 
Biswarup 
Ganguly 

Junior 
Executive 

2,17,293 B.Com 7 17.09.2018 32 T. Chatterjee & 
Associates as 
Junior 
Executive 

N.A. NO 

9 Mr. Tapas 
Chaudhuri 

Officer 2,08,975 M.Sc. 42 12.08.1996 64 B. M. Chathrath 
& Co., Audit 
Firm, as Bank 
Audit Specialist 

N.A. NO 

10 Mr. 
Kedareswer 
Datta 
Choudhury 

Assistant 1,85,823 Higher 
Secondary 

37 01.04.1984 64 First 
Employment 

N.A. NO 

 

Notes : (i) Contractual and in accordance with the terms and conditions of appointment and applicable rules of the 
Company. 

(ii) Remuneration received includes salary, allowances, contribution to retirement fund and monetary 
value of perquisites computed as per the provisions of Income Tax Act and Rules. 
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(iii) No employee, other than Mr. A. K. Dabriwala, is related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company. 

(iv) None of the employees has drawn in excess of remuneration drawn by the Managing Director and 
holds 2% or more of the Equity Shares of the Company as on 31st March, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
                                                                                                                                              Sd/- 

Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
Kolkata – 700 016 Chairman & Managing Director 
May 27, 2022. DIN : 00024498 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
(a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

As an aftermath of lockdown, the economy is facing cash crunch and 
business houses are frantically looking for raising funds to tide over the 
situation and making good the losses suffered.  

 
(b) OPPORTUNITIESAND THREATS 

Although NBFCs have a major role to play in the development of 
infrastructure, transport and the support system for economically weaker 
section, in the present scenario, NBFCs are facing lending crunch as there 
is substantial reduction in the disbursement of loans. 

 
(c) PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

The company is principally engaged in Non-banking financial activity. The 
Company has booked Profit before Tax of Rs.127.90 lakhs. During the year 
under review the company earned interest of Rs. 194.25 lakhs on loans 
given as compared to the previous year of Rs. 195.03 lakhs. The Company 
also earned Rs. 70.51 lakhs on property let out as against of Rs. 71.72 
lakhs in the previous year. 

 
(d) OUTLOOK 

The Company has initiated several steps to diversify in other areas as the 
traditional business of NBFC is not very lucrative in the present scenario. 

 
(e) RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Risk is inherent in every business; but NBFCs are exposed to certain 
additional risks. In fact there is high risk perception on NBFC sector. 

 
(f) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Internal control systems of the Company commensurate with its scale of 
operation and complexity involved in the nature of business carried on by 
the Company. 

 
(g) OPERATIONAL AND  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

During the year under review, the gross revenue from operations was Rs. 
269.57 lakhs as compared to that of Rs.271.24 lakhs for the previous 
financial year. Profit before tax in the current financial year was Rs.127.90 
lakhs as compared to that of the previous financial year of Rs.119.74 lakhs. 

 
(h) HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, there was no material 
development in human resources and industrial relations. 

There were eleven permanent employees in the Company as on 31st March, 
2022. The Company maintains good relations with its workers. 
 

(i) DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES 

Details of Significant change (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to 
the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with 
detailed explanations therefor: 
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Sl. No. Particulars Financial Year 
2021-22 

Financial Year 
2020-21 

Change in 
Financial ratio 

Percentage 

(i) Debtors Turnover 0.17 0.12 0.05      41.67% 
(ii) Inventory Turnover N.A. N.A. N.A        -- 
(iii) Interest Coverage Ratio 0.00 0.00   0.00      -- 
(iv) Current Ratio 41.95 42.35       (0.40)     (0.94%) 
(v) Debt Equity Ratio 0.00 0.04       (0.04)     (100%) 
(vi) Operating Profit Margin (%) 47.45 44.15  3.30 7.47% 
(vii) Net Profit Margin (%) 27.97 32.22 (4.25)     (13.19%) 

 
Explanations (Serial Number-wise) : 

(i) Increase in debtors compared to last year by Rs.10,91,200/- 
(ii) N.A. 
(iii) N.A 
(iv) Increase in Current Liabilities compared to last year by Rs.1,40,348/- 
(v) Current Year Debt Liability is Nil compared to last year. 
(vi) Increase in EBIT compared to last year by Rs.8,16,068/- 
(vii) Decrease in PAT by Rs. 11,97,174/- compared to last year contributed the reduced Net Profit 

Margin.    
 

(j) Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof. 

 

Financial Year 
2021-2022 

Financial Year 
2020-2021 

Change in 
Net Worth 

3.04% 3.64% (0.60) 

 
               
                Explanations: 
               
               This is mainly due to the decrease in Net Income (PAT) as compared to last year by  
               Rs. 11,97,174/- 
 
 

(k) CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

This report is a forward looking statement subject to variation in real life 
situation. Actual results could differ substantially from those expressed or 
implied. 

 
 

For and on behalf of the 
Board 

 
                                                                                                                      Sd/- 

Ashok Kumar Dabriwala 
                                                                                               Chairman & Managing Director 

Kolkata – 700 016                                                                 DIN: 00024498 
May 27, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  
UNITED CREDIT LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United Credit Limited(“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows ,the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended 
on that date including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (herein after referred to as “Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner sorequired and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2022, its profit (including Other Comprehensive Income), Changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Key Audit Matters 

 
3. Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.  

 
Other Information  

 
4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board Report and Shareholders’ Information but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid documents 
are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
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5. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

6. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 

7. When we read the aforesaid documents, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matters to those charged with governance. 
 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

8. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act.  This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate  accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view  and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.  
 

9. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

10. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
 

12. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
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 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  Under Section 143(3) (i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of thefinancial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

 
16. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

17. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub –section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.  
 

18. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income) and the Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act; 

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. 
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 

2022 on its financial statements - Refer Note 25 to the financial statements. 
 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;  

 
(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement. 
 

e. The Company has neither proposed any dividend in the Previous year or in the 
current year nor paid any interim dividend during the year. 

 
 

 
 

 For L. B. Jha & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Registration No.: 301088E 
                             Sd/- 

(D. N. Roy) 
Place: Kolkata Partner 
Date: 27-05-2022 (Membership No.: 300389) 
          UDIN: 22300389AJUSDX7359 
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ANNEXURE- A: TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the MembersofUNITED CREDIT LIMITED 
[Referred to in paragraph 17 of the Auditors’ Report of even date] 

 

i. (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and Equipment.  

 (a) (B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the company does not have any intangible assets. 
 

 (b) The Property, plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material discrepancies between the book records 
and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable. 
 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the company does not have any immovable properties. 

 (d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
company examined by us, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment or Intangible assets during the year. 

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us no proceeding has been 
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,2022 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory at the year-end and hence reporting under 
this clause is not applicable. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
company examined by us, the company has not borrowed working capital loans from 
any bank during the year and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

iii. (a) The Company is a registered NBFC hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

 (b) According to the information and explanation given to us  and the records of the 
company examined by us , terms and conditions of investment made are not prima-facie 
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.  

 (c) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company 
examined by us , there is no stipulation of recovery of principals as these loans are 
repayable at demand . For interest payments,  repayment terms are fixed.   

 (d)  The aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more 
than ninety days in respect of recovery of principal. Interest are repayable on quarterly 
basis and no dues are outstanding for more than ninety days as on 31st March, 2022. 
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 (e) The Company is a registered NBFC hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

 (f) According to information and explanation given to us and records of the Company 
examined by us, details of loans repayable on demands are as per below given  
                                                                                                              (Rs. in lakhs) 

 All Parties Promoters Related Parties 
Aggregate amount 
ofloans/ advances 
innature of loans 
- Repayable 
ondemand (A) 
- Agreement 
doesnot specify 
anyterms or period 
of 
repayment (B) 

 
 
 
 
 
                 1609.35 

 
 
 
 
 

-  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

- 

Total (A+B)                   1609.35                        -          - 
Percentage 
ofloans/advances in 
nature ofloans to 
the totalloans 

 
 
 
                    100% 

 
 
 
                       - 

 
 
 

- 
 

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the Company has not made any investment, advanced any 
loan, given any guarantee or provided any securities to others as per section 185 and 186 
of the Act  and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year, within the 
meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there 
under. Moreover, no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any other court or tribunal. 
 

vi.  The Central Government of India has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under 
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. 
 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods 
and service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities. 
 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there has been no dues of income tax, goods and services 
Tax , cess ,provident fund and other statutory dues as at 31st March 2022 which have not 
been deposited on account any dispute as at 31st March 2022. 
 

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  
 

ix.  The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.  
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x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under this clause 
is not applicable.  

 (b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have 
we been informed of such case by the management.  
 

 (b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the Company has not received any complaints from any 
whistle-blower during the year (and upto the date of this report) and hence reporting 
under this clause is not applicable. 
 

xii. 
 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause is not 
applicable. 
 

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 
177 and 188 of the Act with respect to its transactions with the related parties. Pursuant 
to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard, details of the related party 
transactions have been disclosed in Note 27of the financial statements for the year under 
audit.  
 

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business.  
 

    (b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 
our audit procedures. 
 

xv.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company.  
 

xvi. (a) 

 

 

 (b) 

 

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) and is required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Certificate 
of registration no. 05.03110 has been issued by the Reserve Bank of India to the 
Company. 
 
The Company is a registered NBFC and hence reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (b) & (c) is 
not applicable. 
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xvii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year 
and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.  
 

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  
 

xx.  According to information and explanation given to us and records of the Company 
examined by us, Provisions of sec 135 (5) of the Companies Act. 2013 is not applicable 
to Company. 
 

xxi.  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture hence reporting 
under this clause is not applicable. 

  
 

For L. B. Jha & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Registration No: 301088E 
                             Sd/- 

(D.N. Roy) 
Place: Kolkata Partner 
Date: 27.05.2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership No: 300389 
UDIN: 22300389AJUSDX7359 
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ANNEXURE- B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of United Credit Limited 
[Referred to in paragraph 18 (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date] 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub –sections 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of United Credit Limited 
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
control based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidance 
Note” and the Standard on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material Weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based 
on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of thefinancial statement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

 
5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 

6.  A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that: 
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1) Pertains to the maintenance of the records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly   
    reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 
2) Provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorization of management and directors of company; and  

 
3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 
 
7.  Because of inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to errors or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluations of the 
internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respect, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the company considering, the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting, issued by 
ICAI. 

 
 

 For L. B. Jha & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Registration No.: 301088E 
                            Sd/- 

(D.N. Roy) 
Place: Kolkata Partner 
Date: 27-05-2022 (Membership No.: 300389) 
 UDIN: 22300389AJUSDX7359 
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 UNITED CREDIT LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 

 

1. General/ Corporate Information  

United Credit Limited (UCL) is the successor to the erstwhile United Bank of India Limited (UBIL). 

The name of the Company was originally United India Credit and Development Company Limited 

(UICDCL), which has been changed to United Credit Limited on 1st January, 1981 upon compliance 

of applicable statutory provisions. Consequent upon nationalization of the banking sector, the 

undertaking of UBIL became vested in the corresponding new bank, United Bank of India and 

pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta by an 

Order dated 23rd August, 1974 UBIL was merged with UICDCL, and the assets and liabilities of 

UBIL were transferred to and became vested in UICDCL. 

The Company is mainly divided operationally into the lease, hire purchase, consumer financing, 

investment and capital market operation. The overall management of the Company is vested in  the 

Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation and Presentation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to 

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder.  

The functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (‘INR’) which is mentioned in the financial 

statements and the amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs and rounded off to two 

decimal except for Earning Per Share and where mentioned otherwise.  

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 were approved for 

issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 27th May, 2022. 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, 

except for financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of reporting period, as 

explained in the accounting policies below: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that 

price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 

value of an asset or a liability, the Company take into account the characteristics of the asset or 

liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or 

liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in these financial 

statements is determined on such a basis. 

In view of the Company being an NBFC, the Financial Statements has a bearing of the directions  

and guidelines issued by the RBI to the extent applicable to the Company. 

 

2.2 Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the 

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures 

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 

revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical 

accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in 

these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 2.2.1. Accounting estimates could change 

from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 

estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 

estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which 

changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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2.3 Property, plant and equipment 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical 

cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and any 

attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 

to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 

component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 

maintenance are expensed during the reporting period in which they are incurred.  

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of 

profit and loss. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment commences when the assets are ready for their 

intended use It is recognized so as to amortise the cost of assets less their residual values over their 

useful lives, based on the useful lives and in the manner as prescribed by Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Capital work-in-progress 

Items of Property, Plant & Equipment under construction/installation/fabrication and not put to use 

are included under capital-work-in- progress. 

 

2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 

the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 

an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use is the present value of 

estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its 

disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 

the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). 

 

2.5 Foreign currency translation 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) , being the functional currency of the 

Company. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

Company operates. 
 
Initial recognition of all transactions: 

Recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. 

 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary items are restated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.  

Non-monetary items (carried at fair value) as on reporting date are restated using the exchange rate 

prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on such items are 

reported as part of the fair value gain or loss on such items. 
For non-monetary items (carried at historical cost) as on reporting date restatement is not required  

 

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses: 

Financial Assets: 

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 

currency and translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.  

• For monetary financial assets measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL and non-monetary  
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• financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a 

hedging relationship. 

• Foreign currency changes for non-monetary financial assets measured at FVTOCI are recognised in 

other comprehensive income. 

Financial Liabilities: 

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 

currency and translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. 

For monetary financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL and non -monetary 

financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a 

hedging relationship. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange 

component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in statement of profit and 

loss. 

2.6 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

and Contingent Assets Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the 

time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 

from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 

will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliable.  

 

Onerous contracts 

An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the 

unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 

expected to be received from the contract. Present obligation arising under onerous contracts are 

recognised and measured as provisions. 

 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which 

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the Company; or is a present obligation that arises from past events 

but is not recognized because either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 

obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognized. In the normal 

course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the 

Company. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain 

obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are no 

probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as 

contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the standalone 

financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal 

proceedings in which the Company is involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a 

material effect on its financial position or profitability. 

Contingent Assets 

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income  

is virtually certain. 
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2.7    

Leases 

 

As a lessee 
The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial 

direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 

restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.  

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 

commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 

the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 

those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 

impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 

the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 

be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:  

-  Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

-  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as  

   at the commencement date; 

-  Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments  in an optional renewal 

As a lessor 

Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss on a straight- line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation 

are recognised as an expense in the statement of Profit &Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, 

brokerage costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of Profit &Loss.  

Assets given under a finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net 

investment in the lease. Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a 

constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease. Initial direct costs relating to assets given on 

finance leases are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

2.8 Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment 

 

2.9 Financial instruments  

Recognition of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Loans & advances and all other regular way 

purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade date 

 

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 

financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from their respective fair 

value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 

or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 
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Subsequent Measurement 

(A)Financial Assets 

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost (AC): 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective 

is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):  

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under 

effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI). On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the 

statement of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. A 

financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI 

criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or 

significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring 

assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has 

not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any 

gains or losses arising on re- measurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method: 

The Effective Interest Rate Method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument 

and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The Effective Interest Rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the 

amortised cost of a financial liability on initial recognition 

Impairment of Financial Assets: 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial 

assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease/trade receivables, other 

contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as 

at FVTPL. 

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the 

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased 

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial 

instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 

initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected 

life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make 

that assessment, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 

without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial  

recognition. 

In case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured in accordance with the above 

requirements is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the 

statement of profit and loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the  
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balance sheet; so the financial asset continues to be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.  

No Expected credit losses is recognised on equity investments but these are impaired if there is a 

permanent diminution in the value of such investments. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result 

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company measures the loss allowance 

at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, 

the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. The expected credit loss 

allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss 

experience 

Derecognition of Financial Assets: 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset to another party. 
On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in its entirety,  

a) for financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognized in the statement                

of profit and loss. 

b) for financial assets measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken 

to reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an equity 

investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is 

reclassified within equity. 

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for 

derecognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset shall be 

allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, on the 

basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. 

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 

continues to control the transferred asset, it recognises its retained interest in the assets and an 

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

(B) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments: 

Equity Instruments: 

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after 

deducting all of its liabilities. 

Financial Liabilities: 

Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  

Financial Guarantee Contracts: 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not 

designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

• the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind 

AS 109; and 

•  the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities: 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with 

substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability 

and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of 

an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is 

accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new 

financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised 

and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and  loss. 
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Fair Value: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 

is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 

either: 
a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assets or 

liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the 

Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 

best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value 

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its 

entirety, which are as follows: 

 Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

entity can access at the measurement date; 
 Level 2 - Other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances with banks, cheques on hand, 

remittances in transit and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less that 

are readily convertible to know amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant change in 

value. 

2.11 Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 

costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings 

using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as 

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be 

drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no 

evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised 

as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. 

The dividends on these preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.  

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability 

that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any 

non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other 

gains/(losses). 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of 

a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period 

with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not 

classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval 

of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 
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2.12 Employee Benefits 

 (i)Short-term obligations: 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 

wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service 

are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are 

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 

presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations: 

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 

of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the 

present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees 

up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are 

discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating 

to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and 

changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an 

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 

regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

(iii) Post-employment obligations: 

The company operates the following post-employment schemes: 

Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity and Leave Encashment 

Gratuity and Leave obligations 

Gratuity Liability and Long Term compensated absences are defined benefit plans. The cost of 
providing benefits is determined in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally qualified 

actuaries, using the projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if 

applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the 

balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which 

they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 

retained earnings and is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Past service is recognised in 

statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying 

the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined 

benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses 

on curtailments and settlements); 

• net interest expense or income; and 

• re-measurement 

 

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in statement of profit and 

loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as 

past service costs. 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is 

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or 

surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited 

to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or 

reductions in future contributions to the plans. 
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Defined contribution plans 

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local 

regulations. The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 

The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are 

recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized 

as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

2.13 Income taxes 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

Current tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable 

income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 

liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.  

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 

enacted at the end of the reporting period in the country where the company operate and generate 

taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to 

situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 

where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 

the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT 

credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to 

statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at 

each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent 

there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax 

during the specified period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 

balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 

liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial 

recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 

accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 

of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax 

liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 

company, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 

taxation authority and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.  

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to 

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 

current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 

respectively. 
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2.14 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
Revenue from Operations is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as  
stated herein below: 

(a) Income for financial assets other than those financial assets classified as at Fair value through 

profit and loss (“FVTPL”) is recognized based on the effective interest rate method. Income from 

Credit Impaired Financial Assets is recognized on net basis i.e. after considering Impairment Loss 

Allowance. 

(b) Interest income on fixed deposits/margin money/pass through certificates is recognized on a time 

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

(c) Rent Income/Lease rentals are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of  

agreements. 

(d)Income from dividend is recognized when the Company’s right to receive such dividend is  

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 

entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of 

dividend can be measured reliably. 

2.15 Prudential Norms 

The Company has followed the prudential norms for income recognition and provisioning against 

non-performing assets and standard assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for Non -

Banking Financial Companies. 

 

2.16 Segment Reporting 

 Based on the organizational structures and its Financial Reporting System, the Company has 

classified its operation into two e business segments namely Financing Activity and Renting 

Activity. 

 Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the 

operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which are related to the enterprise as a 

whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included under un-

allocable expenses. 

2.17 Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end 

of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of 

recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due 

within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  

 

2.18 Basic earning per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit attributable to owners of the company 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 

bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares 

 

2.19 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of a non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 

payments. The cash flow from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the 

Company are segregated. 

 

2.20 Exceptional Item 

When items of income and expenses within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are 

of as such size, nature and or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of 

the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as 

exceptional items. 
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2.21 Critical estimates and judgements 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the 

management have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements 

 

Expected credit loss on loans and advances 

The Company has used its judgement in determining various parameters of expected credit loss. 

These parameters include staging, default, discount rates, expected life, significant increase in credit 

risk, amount and timing of future cash flows. In estimating these cash flows, the Company makes 

judgement about the realisable value of the securities hypothecated/mortgaged to it, based on the 

historical data and/or independent valuation reports. 

These assumptions are based on the assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may 

differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance. 

A collective assessment of impairment takes into account data from the loan portfolio (such as credit 

quality, nature of assets underlying assets financed, levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to 

collateral ratios etc.), and the economic data (including levels of unemployment, country risk and 

performance of different individual groups). These critical assumptions have been applied 

consistently to all period presented. 

Business Model Assessment 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the 

business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups 

of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Company 

monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

income that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and 

whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. 

Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether  the business model for which 

the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether 

there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those 

assets. 
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ANNEXURE - ‘A’ 
 

C B Management Services (P) Ltd. 
Unit: United Credit Limited 
P-22, Bondel Road 
Kolkata – 700019 

 
Updation of Shareholder Information 

 

I / We request you to record the following information against my/our Folio No./DP ID/CLIENT 
ID: 

 
FOLIO NO. :  
Personal details :  
Name of the member :  
Name of joint holders, if any :  

Address / Registered address 
(in case of body corporate) 

:  

E-mail Id :  

CIN / Registration No. 
(in case of body corporate) 

:  

Unique Identification No.   
Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name   
Status :  
Occupation :  
PAN :  
Nationality :  
In case member is a minor   
Name of Guardian :  
Date of birth of minor :  
Details of membership   
Date of becoming member :  

Date of declaration under section 89, if 
applicable 

:  

Name and address of beneficial owner :  

Date of receipt of nomination, if 
applicable 

:  

Name and address of nominee :  

No. of shares kept in abeyance, if 
applicable 

:  

Record of lien on shares, if applicable :  
Date of cessation of membership :  
Bank Details:   
IFSC (11 digit) :  
MICR (9 digit) :  
Bank A/c. Type :  
Bank A/c. No. * :  
Name of the Bank :  
Bank Branch Address :  

 
 
* A blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of bank details. 



ANNEXURE – ‘B’ 
 
 

UNITED CREDIT LIMITED 
CIN: L65993WB1970PLC027781 

Regd Office : 27B, Camac Street (8th Floor), Kolkata – 700016 
Phone : (033) 2287-9359 / 9360, Fax : (033) 2287-2047 

E-mail : unitedcreditltd@gmail.com, Website: www.unitedcreditltd.com 
 

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM 
(In terms of Circular Nos.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and 29.04.2011 

respectively issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs) 
 
 
 
Name : ………………………………………………………e-mail Id :……………………………… 

 
Address : ………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 

DP ID. : ……………………………………………………………………………….……………….. 
 
Client ID. : …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 
Folio No. : …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
(in case of physical holding) 

 
No. of Shares held : …………………………………………………………………………………. 

 
I / we shareholder(s) of United Credit Limited agree to receive communication from the 
Company in electronic mode. 

 
Please register my / our above e-mail id in your records for sending communication through e- 
mail. 

 
 
Date: …………………… Signature :………………………………… 

(Sole Holder /First Holder) 
 
Note : Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any 

change in the e-mail address 
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